From: Bolstridge, Karen

To: "Jim Hebert"; "Chad Hebert"; Richard Trafton

Cc: Horn-Olsen, Samantha; Livesay. Nicholas; Bolstridge, Karen
Subject: LUPC — DP 4944

Date: Friday, October 10, 2014 11:05:00 AM

Attachments: dp4944 Keylssues 9-29-14.pdf

EW LUPC — DP 4944.pdf

Jim:

Thank you for taking the time to attend the Commission Meeting on October 08, 2014 to hear
the discussion on outstanding key issues related to the telecommunications tower proposed in
Big Lake Township.

During that meeting, the Commission voiced questions about the project, location and design
the answers to which would help assist in the review of the application.

Staff has summarize those questions for the applicant below; please provide the answers to
staff.

1. Would a shorter tower necessitate building another tower, or multiple towers,
elsewhere?

2. What other towers are anticipated in the area in the future? How will the
height and capacity of this tower affect the construction of future towers?

3. What entities do you anticipate requesting co-location? Have any of those
entities made initial requests? Could they be accommodated on a tower under
200°? How many co-locations would be available on a 200 foot tower?

4. Can the tower be more than 190" and still be unlighted? What is the

maximum unlighted height, and would that height tower provide coverage to

meet the FCC requirements?

Please provide a legend for the coverage maps for 190° and 200°.

Please expand upon your statements at the public hearing about how and what

alternative sites were considered, and whether there are other possible sites

with a lesser visual impact. Please note that specific alternatives, such as
moving farther back on the lot, or the Sharon Hatch property, were raised by
commenters.

o o

Further, below and attached is an email sent by Nick Livesay on October 01, 2014. | am
resending it to you at your corrected email address to insure you have a full copy with
attachments so that you may answer any questions relayed in that email.

Let me know if you have any questions or if | can be of any assistance.

Thanks

Karen E. Bolstridge

Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry
Land Use Planning Commission

Downeast Regional Representative

106 Hogan Road; Suite 8

Bangor, Maine 04401
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Memorandum
Date:  September 29, 2014
To: Commission Members

From: Samantha Horn Olsen, Planning Manager
Re: Key Issues, Development Permit DP4944, Maine RSA #4, Incorporated, Big Lake
Township, Washington County, Maine

At the October 8 Commission meeting, you will be asked to discuss the record evidence
presented to date in DP4944, an application to construct a 250’ cell tower in Big Lake Township.
The hearing record will not close until October 27, however, there is considerable evidence
already available in the record and discussion of this evidence would be valuable at this time.
Based on staff’s review, the primary topic for consideration is the visual impact of the proposed
project. Because the proposed tower exceeds 200’ it will be lighted in order to comply with
Federal Aviation Administration requirements. As a result, the Commission will have to
consider the visual impacts associated with the tower both during the day and night.

To assist in your review of the project and help focus the discussion at the upcoming meeting,
this memo notes the key record evidence received to date, and summarizes the relevant review
criteria the Commission must apply. Keeping in mind the record will remain open for a few days
after the October 8 meeting and that the Commission’s ultimate permitting decision must be
based on the record, there are a few key questions to consider as you review the materials.

Does the evidence in the record demonstrate:

1) The proposed cell tower has been located and designed (including the designed height) to
reasonably minimize the tower’s visual impact on the surrounding area?

2) The proposed cell tower, to the extent practicable, is proposed to be sited in a location
least likely to block or interrupt scenic views from traveled ways, water bodies, or public

property?

3) The proposed cell tower will not have an undue adverse effect on existing uses, scenic
character, and historic resources?
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Topic Areas Associated with Evaluation of Visual Impacts

The following topics are repeated from the staff memo that was distributed in preparation for the
hearing. Below each topic we have listed key considerations based on the record evidence
received to date.

Review Criteria:

Sec. 685-B(4)(C): adequate provision has been made for fitting proposal into existing
natural environment to ensure no undue adverse effect on existing uses, scenic
character, and historic resources

Ch. 10.25,E,1,a: The design of proposed development shall take into account
the scenic character of the surrounding area. Structures shall be located,
designed and landscaped to reasonably minimize their visual impact on the
surrounding area, particularly when viewed from existing roadways or shorelines.

Ch. 10.25,E,1,b: To the extent practicable, proposed structures and other visually
intrusive development shall be placed in locations least likely to block or
interrupt scenic views as seen from traveled ways, water bodies, or public

property.

Alternative Locations
Key considerations:
e We learned at the hearing that the applicant used a combination of general siting
guidelines from US Cellular and availability of land in selecting the proposed location.
e Suggestions from the public included siting the tower further back on the current lot or
utilizing an alternative property owned by Sharon Hatch.

Alternative Designs
Key Considerations:

e The applicant states that at a height of 250" a monopole would be more visually intrusive
than the proposed lattice tower.

e New maps (Attachment A) are provided to show the difference in coverage between a
250 tower vs. a 190° tower. Also in attachment A is a map that the applicant presented
at the public hearing that shows coverage in the area without a tower.

e A 190’ tower is not proposed at this time. No analysis of the difference in visual impact
for a 190’ tower is presented. A 190’ tower would not have to be lighted.

Sufficiency of Visual Analysis
Key Considerations:
e The applicant’s viewshed maps depict the locations from which it is expected the tower
will be visible and predict visibility from large areas of Big Lake.
e Visual analysis was conducted from selected shoreline areas but not from waterbodies,
including Big Lake.
e The applicant has not evaluated the visual impact of the lighted tower at night.





Attachment A: Coverage maps and explanation










From: Jim Hebert

To: Bolstridge, Karen

Cc: "Chad Hebert"; Richard Houde; Richard Trafton

Subject: RF Coverage information for the 250" tower

Date: Friday, September 05, 2014 2:21:35 PM

Attachments: Princeton (R1)_only_250ft.pdf

Hi Karen: Attached is a copy of a radio frequency (RF) plot for the proposed 250’ tower for
comparison with that for a 190’ tower previously provided. In comparing the 2 RF plots, a
layperson might question the difference in coverage between the 2 tower heights. Gerard
Boland, US Cellular’s RF engineer observed from these plots that the 190" tower would
definitely degrade data speeds in the populated areas of Princeton, even though it appears that
the FCC Auction 901 coverage requirements are met. He further stated that the
telecommunications facility’s compliance with those requirements are measured after the
facility is constructed and operating. The applicant remains concerned that if the facility is
constructed with a 190’ tower and the FCC standards are not met, the FCC monies for this site
will be withheld. LUPC should also recognize that the FCC standards focus primarily on house
and road location, not total coverage area. In a location such as Big Lake Township, coverage
for lakes and wilderness area is important for public safety purposes. Additionally, a tower
height reduction will reduce the opportunities for colocation by others wanting to locate on the
tower. Please let me know if you have questions regarding this matter. Thanks, Jim





250’ Tower






190’ Tower






Attachment B. Relevant Review Criteria

There are review criteria in both statute and rule that the Commission must apply that require an
evaluation of the visual impact of the proposed development. State law provides:

The [Clommission may not approve an application, unless:

C. Adequate provision has been made for fitting the proposal harmoniously into the
existing natural environment in order to ensure that there will be no undue adverse effect
on existing uses, scenic character and natural and historic resources likely to be affected
by the proposal.

12 M.R.S. § 685-B(4) (quoted in Ch. 10.24,C).
The Chapter 10.25,E,1 of the Commission’s rules provide:

a. The design of proposed development shall take into account the scenic character
of the surrounding area. Structures shall be located, designed and landscaped to
reasonably minimize their visual impact on the surrounding area, particularly when
viewed from existing roadways or shorelines.

b. To the extent practicable, proposed structures and other visually intrusive
development shall be placed in locations least likely to block or interrupt scenic views as
seen from traveled ways, water bodies, or public property.





Attachment C. Select Record Components Related to Visual Impacts

The following portions of the record, compiled to date, relate to evaluation of the visual impact
of the proposed development. Several of the public comments touched on visual impact, so the
entire public comment section is referenced below.

i
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
Vi.
Vil.

viii.

Xi.
Xii.

Xiii.
Xiv.

XV.

Exhibit 2,A (pg. 11): Vegetation buffering.

Exhibit 2,A (pgs. 16-17): Scenic character, natural and historic features.
Exhibit 2,A (pg. 61): Historic preservation assessment.

Exhibit 2,A (pg. 70): Lighting.

Exhibit 2,A (pg. 95): Co-location.

Exhibit 3,B: Visual impact assessment.

Exhibit 3,C: Revised Predictive and Verified Maps Cover

Exhibit 3,D: Additional information and comments on visual impact assessment.
Exhibit 3,J: Colocation, tower height and lighting.

Exhibit 6,D: Submittals by the applicant during the public hearing.
Exhibit 6,E: Submittals by Interested Public during the public hearing.
Exhibit 6,F: Audio of the public hearing.

Exhibit 7: Submittals by applicant after the public hearing.

Exhibit 8: Public comments.

Exhibit 9: Rebuttal submittals






From: Livesay, Nicholas

To: "irhebert@blkdiamond.net"”; Richard Trafton (rtrafton@traftonandmatzen.com)
Cc: Horn-Olsen, Samantha; Bolstridge, Karen

Subject: FW: LUPC — DP 4944

Date: Wednesday, October 01, 2014 4:17:17 PM

Attachments: dp4944 Keylssues 9-29-14.pdf

Jim:

When we spoke several weeks ago | indicated that we were reviewing the RF plots showing
coverage for both a 250’ and 190’ tower in Big Lake. When you emailed the plot for the 250’ tower
you included a summary of observations made by Gerard Boland of U.S. Cellular. In general, this
summary states that although the RF plots for the two different tower heights appear very similar,
there are a number of reasons U.S. Cellular is proposing a 250’ tower.

As you know and as outlined in the recent staff memo to the Commission regarding the review of
DP 4944 (Mary York emailed a copy to you yesterday and | am forwarding that email here), the
Commission’s review responsibilities require it to evaluate the visual impact of the proposed
tower. The applicable statutory and regulatory standards are quoted and cited in the memo. In
particular, the Commission’s rules state:

The design of proposed development shall take into account the scenic character of
the surrounding area. Structures shall be located, designed and landscaped to
reasonably minimize their visual impact on the surrounding area, particularly when
viewed from existing roadways or shorelines.

Ch. 10.25,E,1,a.

With regard to the proposed cell tower, the tower height is a key feature of its design and whether
the tower has been designed to reasonably minimize its visual impact likely will be one of the
central determinations the Commission will have to make. As part of this analysis it is likely the
Commission will consider whether the proposed 250’ tower that requires lighting is a reasonable
design when compared to the service that would be provided by a 190’ unlighted tower.

When we last spoke, | indicated that it would be helpful if Gerald Boland or someone else could
submit additional information elaborating on the general conclusion you passed on in your
September 5 email. This remains the case.

In the meantime, we have attempted to learn what we can about the FCC Auction 901 referenced
in your email. We understand that auction funding is important for the project and that through
this auction U.S. Cellular will receive approximately $526,000 for the current project, provided the
FCC auction requirements are satisfied. We also understand that one of the key requirements is
that U.S. Cellular provide a certain level of coverage to specific roads within a geographic area.
Information available online indicates there are 18.89 road miles within the Princeton/Big Lake
geographic area subject to the FCC Auction 901. Can you or U.S. Cellular show where these road
miles are in relation to the area of coverage shown on the plots? Also, in U.S. Cellular’s bid, what
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









portion of these road miles are proposed for coverage? Finally, what type and level of service is
proposed by U.S. Cellular in bid to the FCC and how does this service compare to the FCC’s
requirements in order to receive FCC auction money? This and any other information that would
assist the Commission in its understanding whether FCC auction money would remain available if a
190’ tower were constructed, as opposed to a 250’ tower, would be helpful.

Also, in your summary email from September 5 you indicate that opportunities for colocation
would be reduced with a shorter tower. Has U.S. Cellular received requests for colocation? Will
there be any difficulty accommodating those requests under either a 250" or 190’ scenario? How
much space would be available for future colocation in either tower height scenario? Any
additional information on this topic area you think would be helpful would be appreciated.

Please let me know if you or U.S. Cellular will be able to provide the Commission additional
information to help Commission members better understand the differences between a 190’ tower
and 250’ tower as it applies the required visual impact standards.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Regards,
Nick

From: York, Mary

Sent: Tuesday, September 30, 2014 2:19 PM

To: 'rtrafton@traftonandmatzen.com’; ‘jrhebert@blckdiamond.net
Cc: Bolstridge, Karen; Horn-Olsen, Samantha; Livesay, Nicholas
Subject: LUPC — DP 4944

Please see the attached memo to the Commission...

/%/7 Jork,

DACF/Land Use Planning Commission

22 State House Station = Augusta, ME 04333-0022
207=287-7439 (fax) = 207=287-2631
www.maine.gov/dacf/lupc = Grace brings contentment.
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(207) 941-4052
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From: Livesay, Nicholas

Sent: Wednesday, October 01, 2014 4:17 PM

To: ‘jrhebert@blkdiamond.net’; Richard Trafton (rtrafton@traftonandmatzen.com)
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


http://www.maine.gov/acf

geographic area subject to the FCC Auction 901. Can you or U.S. Cellular show where these road
miles are in relation to the area of coverage shown on the plots? Also, in U.S. Cellular’s bid, what
portion of these road miles are proposed for coverage? Finally, what type and level of service is
proposed by U.S. Cellular in bid to the FCC and how does this service compare to the FCC's
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



